
   

 
 

 
 

City of Phoenix 
Office of the City Engineer 

Design and Construction Procurement 
 

AV06000026 FAA   
WEST AIR CARGO RECONSTRUCTION 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
ISSUE DATE: May 17, 2023  
 
Bidders are hereby notified that the Bidding and Contract Documents for the above project, for which 
Bids are to be received on May 23, 2023, are amended as follows: 
 

Q1. Are there any restrictions for working in the RPZ? 

A1. No static equipment or materials may be staged or stored in the RPZ. General construction activities are permitted. 

Equipment higher than 15’ shall not be used within the RPZ when the runway is operational. Sheets GC-100 

through GC-104 have been updated to indicate the limit of the RPZ. 

  

Q2. Is the bid date expected to be the same? 

A2. Yes 

  

Q3. Is there a site available for setting up a batch plant? 

A3. A potential site is available on the west side of 24th St just north of the Sky Train guideway and south of the 

Greyhound bus facility as a potential location for a temporary batch plant. The Contractor is responsible for 

identifying and establishing any needed utility services and permits. Sheet GI-401 has been updated to reflect the 

location of the potential batch plant graphically. After completion, the site needs to be restored to its original 

condition.  See this addendum for details. 

  

Q4. Is there a waste site designated? 

A4. All surplus and/or waste material shall be disposed of by Contractor at and off-site location such as a landfill, per 

Civil Technical Provision SP-23. 

  

Q5. What is the anticipated NTP date? 

A5. NTP is anticipated between mid-July and mid-August. 

  

Q6. What is the anticipated Notice to proceed date for construction? 

A6. Council approval of the contract is planned for July 3, 2023. NTP is anticipated between mid-July and mid-August. 

  

Q7. What is the anticipated Award date and administrative NTP? 

QA. Council approval of the contract is planned for July 3, 2023. NTP is anticipated between mid-July and mid-August. 

  

Q8. Will there be a Fuel, Asphalt or steel index associated with this project? 
 

A8. No 

  

Q9. Is the project Tax Exempt? 



   

A9. All taxes associated with the contracted services are applicable as defined by local, state and federal regulations. 

  

Q10. Are there any known contaminated soils within the project limits? 

A10. None were identified through the project development process to date and there are no known historical 
contaminants within the project limits. 

  

Q11. What permits will be required from the contractor for this project? 

A11. All permits noted in the project design documents and all applicable permits required by local, state and federal 

regulations are required. 

  

Q12. Can the contractor erect a mobile concrete batch plant in the staging area limits shown on plan sheet GI 401? 

A12. No. See response to Item 3 discussion potential location for a temporary batch plant. 

  

Q13. Are there utilities at the staging area location? Water? Electricity? 

A13. No services in the vicinity have been identified, the contractor shall be responsible for any needed utility services. 

  

Q14. I did not see an item for the abandonment of the monitoring well. Where will this item be paid for? 

A14.  Item 11 is for “ABANDON EXISTING MONITORING WELL PER SPECIAL PROVISIONS”. Sheets GI-002, CD-106 

and CD-107 have been updated to reflect the updated language of the work item. The Bid Tabulation has been 

updated to reflect the project bid items. 

  

Q15. Are there prescribed Liquidated Damages in the Specification with regard to opening sections to traffic? 

A15. Liquidated damages will be assessed in accordance with I.F.B Section 24 on a per phase basis. 

  

Q16. Can the Contractor staging and storage area shown on GI-401 be increased to accommodate the projects batch 

plant? Is there another site available airside to accommodate a batching facility? 

A16. No. See response to Item 3 discussion potential location for a temporary batch plant. 

  

Q17. For the PSHIA – West Cargo Apron project will there be a designated area that the City of Phoenix would like to 

stockpile Asphalt millings if we were to mill the existing asphalt? In the past the City of Phoenix has wanted/allowed 

stockpiled AC millings on or around the airport property. We wanted to clarify if the millings is a product that the City 

still wanted. 

A17. No, all millings must be hauled off site and disposed of properly per Civil Technical Specification P-101.3.5. 

  

Q18. Supplementary Conditions Aviation MAG FED Boilerplate Section 16 Audit and Records, has audit language that is 

inconsistent with a Design Bid Build Procurement. Please clarify that the City intended for this language to be 

include in this contract. 

A18. Yes it will be included. 

  

Q19. Sheet CD-106 includes an item to “Cut, cap and abandon existing monitoring well”, per SP-41.1 payment for this 

work will be made by the each, however there is not item on the bid form for this scope. 

A19. Item 11 is for “ABANDON EXISTING MONITORING WELL PER SPECIAL PROVISIONS”. Sheets GI-002, CD-106 

and CD-107 have been updated to reflect the updated language of the work item. The Bid Tabulation has been 

updated to reflect the project bid items. 

  

Q20. Please clarify the allowable work hours for this project. 

A20. Added general note 56 to Sheet GI-003 which reads: “NIGHT WORK HOURS ARE BETWEEN 2300-0700 HOURS 
IN THE SUMMER AND 0000-0800 HOURS IN THE WINTER. WINTER HOURS BEGIN NOVEMBER 5, 2023.” 

  

Q21. Please clarify if a location for batch plant will be provided by the owner. If so, please provide location. 

A21. A potential site is available on the west side of 24th St just north of the Sky Train guideway and south of the 
Greyhound bus facility as a potential location for a temporary batch plant. The Contractor is responsible for 



   

identifying and establishing any needed utility services and permits. Sheet GI-401 has been updated to reflect the 
location of the potential batch plant graphically. 

  

Q22. Sheet 229 of 523 (page SP-28), 35. Work Done By City Forces – Should we build 12 working days of lead paint 
testing/removal for each Phase (1-4) into our schedule, or just Phase 1, which is approximately 15% of allotted 
time? 

A22. The intent is for the City Environmental work for a particular phase to be completed in advance of the contractor 
initiating that phase.  

  

Q23. Sheet 229 of 523 (page SP-28), 35. Work Done By City Forces – Can asphalt be removed that does not contain 
striping (lead paint) on it simultaneously while lead paint is being tested? 

A23. Yes, however, the intent is for the City Environmental work for a particular phase to be completed in advance of the 
contractor initiating that phase. 

  

Q24. Sheet 229 of 523 (page SP-28), 35. Work Done By City Forces – How long will the asbestos testing take for 
concrete samples? 

A24. Unknown, however, the intent is for the City Environmental work for a particular phase to be completed in advance 
of the contractor initiating that phase. 

  

Q25. Sheet 229 of 523 (page SP-28), 35. Work Done By City Forces – If asbestos is detected in concrete how will the 
removal be accounted for? 

A25. Bidders shall assume no asbestos is detected. The intent is for the City Environmental work for a particular phase to 
be completed in advance of the contractor initiating that phase. 

  

Q26. Sheet 229 of 523 (page SP-28), 35. Work Done By City Forces – If lead paint is removed at the same time as the 
asphalt, combined, is the lead percentage per volume high enough to be deemed a threat? 

A26. Unknown, however, the intent is for the City Environmental work for a particular phase to be completed in advance 
of the contractor initiating that phase. 

  

Q27. Sheet 229 of 523 (page SP-28), 35. Work Done By City Forces – Can the paint be tested and results received by 
City Forces prior to construction NTP? 

A27. The intent is for the City Environmental work for a particular phase to be completed in advance of the contractor 
initiating that phase. 

  

Q28. Panel 1258 S. 25th Place, is a 400A, 277/480V, 3P-4W Panel. Who is the manufacture of this panel? 

A28. The manufacturer of the existing panel is Cutler-Hammer. 

  

Q29. Special Provisions 1.11 Vehicle Traffic Regulations 1.11.4 has language regarding traffic restrictions and Non Peak 

hours from 11:00pm to 5:00am. We assume this language is only dealing with Traffic Closures and not a work hour 

restriction for the construction of the West Cargo Apron. Is this correct? 

A29. Correct, it applies to closures only. We assume no lane or street closures will needed for this project. 

  

Q30. 1. Previously a contractor had an on-site concrete batch plant set up at an Airside location on the south side of E. 

Buckeye Road near Gate 220 in the formerly named “Snoopy’s nose” area. This location had both a power 

and water source to batch concrete. 

o Is this Airside location available for concrete batching? 

o If the answer is yes, are there any costs for electrical connection(s) or the use of electricity? 

o Are there any costs for construction water connections or the purchasing of the water? 

 

A30. The area near Gate 220 is not available for this project. 

  

Q31. If the Airside batch plant site location as described in the above question #1 is not available does the City have 

another location available to set up and batch concrete?   

o If the answer is yes to this question can you provide a detailed location of this site?   



   

o Is there an electricity power source at this location?   

o Are there any costs for the electricity / power connection and usage at this location?  

o Is there a source for construction water suitable for batching concrete at this location? 

o Are there any costs for construction water connection(s) or the purchasing of the water? 

o Are there any costs associated with the land usage at this location? 

 

A31. A potential site is available on the west side of 24th St just north of the Sky Train guideway and south of the 
Greyhound bus facility as a potential location for a temporary batch plant. The Contractor is responsible for 
identifying and establishing any needed utility services and permits. Sheet GI-401 has been updated to reflect the 
location of the potential batch plant graphically. After completion, the site needs to be restored to its original 
condition. See this addendum for details. 

  

Q32. Due to tight schedule constraints, would the City of Phoenix allow contractors to work a six (6) day work week? 

A32. Yes, only work restrictions are as specified in the plans and specs, and the typical work moratoriums at Sky Harbor 

around holidays and special events. Additional clarifying information is included in this addendum. 

  

Q33. Due to tight schedule constraints, would the City of Phoenix allow contractors to work a seven (7) day work week? 

A33. Yes, only work restrictions are as specified in the plans and specs, and the typical work moratoriums at Sky Harbor 

around holidays and special events. Additional clarifying information is included in this addendum. 

 
Technical Specifications 
 

1. REPLACE: Delete Pages P-2 through P-4, and replace with attached Pages P-2 through P-4. 

 

2. REPLACE: Delete Section 6.e on Page SP-4 of the Civil Technical Special Provisions in its entirety and replace with 

the following: 

 

e. Availability of Water Trucks and Vacuum Sweepers. 
Vacuum sweepers and highway 4M water trucks shall be available and in operating condition to control dust 
and remove foreign object debris seven (7) days per week and twenty-four (24) hours per day, including 
Holidays. A minimum of two (2) vacuum sweepers (one airside, and one landside) and one (1) 4M highway 
water trucks shall be operating continuously at all times the Contractor or any subcontractor is working on the 
project. 

3. REPLACE: Delete Special Provision Item 41 on Pages SP-59 and SP-60 of the Civil Technical Special Provisions in 

its entirety and replace with the following: 

 
41. ABANDON EXISTING MONITORING WELL This item shall consist of the removal of concrete ring and valve 

box frame and cover and abandoning the monitoring well using the appropriate method as listed in the 
Arizona Department of Water Resources Well Abandonment Handbook, current version, and as approved by 
the City of Phoenix Aviation Department Planning and Environmental Division. The contractor performing this 
work shall meet the qualification requirements established by Arizona Department of Water Resources as 
stated in Form 55-38 (http://www.azwater.gov) and all other required stipulations. 

 
 See monitoring well data sheets as part of this section for additional information about the existing monitoring 

wells to be abandoned. 
 

Measurement and payment for this item shall be per each; removal of frame, cover and abandonment of 
monitoring well. This price shall be full compensation for the item complete, including all labor, parts, 
equipment, permitting, and incidentals. 

 
Payment will be made under: 
 



Item SP-41.1 Abandon Existing Monitoring Well – per each 

4. APPEND: Append pdfs Monitoring Well Data Sheet 55-548686.pdf and Monitoring Well Data Sheet 55-548687.pdf to

Civil Technical Special Provision Item 41. See corresponding attached pdfs to this addendum.

5. REPLACE: Delete Section 24 on Page I.F.B -12 of the Information for Bidders in its entirety and replace with the

following:

24. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND REMEDIES FOR BREACH
This section supersedes MAG Table 108-1 Liquidated Damages. If the Contractor fails to complete any completion 
milestones, the substantial completion milestone, or the project acceptance milestone within the Contract Times 
indicated here or on the plans, the City of Phoenix will sustain substantial damage.  

As set forth below, the City will assess the Contractor liquidated damages for delays in the phase construction 
milestones, substantial completion milestone, and the project acceptance milestones. These damages are not a 
forfeiture or penalty, but liquidated damages for breach of the Contract. They are the City’s estimate of the 
damages the City would suffer if the Contractor does not complete the project on time. The actual damages to the 
City, though certain to occur would be impractical and extremely difficult to determine precisely. In addition to any 
other remedy available to the City at law or in equity, Contractor shall be liable for and shall pay to the City the 
sum of one thousand seven hundred eighty dollars ($1,780.00) per day for breach by Contractor of this Section. 
The parties further agree that the sum above is reasonable and approximates the actual or anticipated loss to the 
City at the time and making of this Agreement. 

Plans: 

1. Sheet GI-002 (Quantity Summary & Sheet Index): Replace this sheet with attached revised Sheet GI-002.

2. Sheet GI-003 (General Notes): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GI-003.

3. Sheet GI-401 (Project Layout Plan): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GI-401.

4. Sheet GC-100 (Overall Construction Phasing Plan): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GC-100.

5. Sheet GC-101 (Construction Phasing Plan Phase 1): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GC-101.

6. Sheet GC-102 (Construction Phasing Plan Phase 2): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GC-102.

7. Sheet GC-103 (Construction Phasing Plan Phase 3): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GC-103.

8. Sheet GC-104 (Construction Phasing Plan Phase 4): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet GC-104.

9. Sheet CD-106 (Civil Demolition Plan): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet CD-106.

10. Sheet CD-107 (Civil Demolition Plan): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet CD-107.

11. Sheet CT-502 (Airfield Marking Details): Replace this sheet with the attached revised Sheet CT-502.

NOTE: Bidders must acknowledge receipt of this Addendum by listing the number and 
date, where provided, on the PROPOSAL P-1. 

END OF ADDENDUM 



PROJECT NO. AV06000026 FAA

1 C-100 CONTRACTOR QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM (CQCP) LS 1 -$      

2 C-102-4.1 TEMPORARY AIR AND WATER POLLUTION, SOIL EROSION, AND SILTATION CONTROL LS 1 -$      

3 C-105 MOBILIZATION (4% MAXIMUM) LS 1 -$      

4 SP-30.1 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY LAYOUT LS 1 -$      

5 SP-31.1 UNFORESEEN UTILITY LOCATING (ALLOWANCE) ALLOW 1 $5,000.00 5,000.00$      

6 SP-32.1

OVEREXCAVATION OF UNSUITABLE MATERIALS AND BACKFILL WITH SELECT MATERIAL 

(ALLOWANCE) ALLOW 1 $125,000.00 125,000.00$     

7 SP-34.1 RPR FIELD OFFICE LS 1 -$      

8 SP-33.1 EXISTING UTILITY RELOCATIONS (ALLOWANCE) ALLOW 1 $75,000.00 75,000.00$       

9 SP-36-8.1 AIRPORT SAFETY AND SECURITY (M-003) LS 1 -$      

10 SP-40.1 CONSTRUCT TEMPORARY ASPHALT PAVEMENT TRANSITION SY 497          -$      

11 SP-41.1 ABANDON EXISTING MONITORING WELL PER SPECIAL PROVISIONS EA 2 -$      

12 P-101-5.1 REMOVE EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT, FULL DEPTH (UP TO 10" DEPTH) SY 93,572     -$      

13 P-101-5.7 REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT SY 722          -$      

14 P-101-5.8

REMOVE EXISING STORM DRAIN MANHOLE FRAME, COVER AND REINFORCED CONCRETE 

APRON EA 2 -$      

15 P-101-5.9 REMOVE EXISTING UILITY HANDHOLE  FRAME, COVER AND REINFORCED CONCRETE APRON EA 1 -$      

16 P-101-5.10

REMOVE EXISTING FAA COMMUNICATION MANHOLE FRAME, COVER AND REINFORCED 

CONCRETE APRON EA 1 -$      

17 P-101-5.11 REMOVE EXISTING INLET FRAME, GRATE AND REINFORCED CONCRETE APRON EA 8 -$      

18 P-101-5.12 REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE TIE DOWN EA 33 -$      

19 P-151-4.1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 -$      

20 P-152-4.1 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION CY 64,158     -$      

21 P-209-5.2 CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (10" THICK) SY 87,653     -$      

22 P-209-5.1 CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (6" THICK) SY 6,424       -$      

23 P-401-8.1 ASPHALT CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE TON 1,807       -$      

24 P-401-8.2 ASPHALT CONCRETE BASE COURSE TON 1,807       -$      

25 P-501-8.1 CONCRETE PAVEMENT SY 87,654     -$      

26 P-603-5.1 BITUMINOUS TACK COAT TON 50 -$      

27 P-604-6.1 COMPRESSION JOINT SEALS FOR CONCRETE PAVEMENT (1/2 INCH WIDE) LF 79,310     -$      

28 P-604-6.2 COMPRESSION JOINT SEALS FOR CONCRETE PAVEMENT (1 INCH WIDE) LF 1,868       -$      

29 P-605-5.1 JOINT SEALING FILLER LF 5,700       -$      

AMOUNT LINE NO. ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT
 APPROX. 

QUANTITY 
UNIT PRICE
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PROJECT NO. AV06000026 FAA

AMOUNT LINE NO. ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT
 APPROX. 

QUANTITY 
UNIT PRICE

30 P-620-5.1a SURFACE PREPARATION OF PAVEMENT TO REMOVE EXISTING MARKINGS SF 12,874     -$      

31 P-620-5.1b SURFACE PREPARATION OF NEW PAVEMENT SURFACES SF 54,132     -$      

32 P-620-5.3c REFLECTIVE MEDIA LS 1 -$      

33 P-620-5.2a YELLOW PAVEMENT MARKING SF 16,128     -$      

34 P-620-5.2b WHITE PAVEMENT MARKING SF 2,051       -$      

35 P-620-5.2c BLACK PAVEMENT MARKING SF 35,479     -$      

36 P-620-5.2d RED PAVEMENT MARKING SF 474          -$      

37 P-620-5.4d TEMPORARY MARKINGS LS 1 -$      

38 D-751-5.1 CONSTRUCT NEW CONCRETE STORM DRAIN MANHOLE APRON EA 2 -$      

39 D-751-5.2 CONSTRUCT NEW CONCRETE HANDHOLE APRON EA 1 -$      

40 D-751-5.3 CONSTRUCT NEW FAA COMMUNICATION MANHOLE APRON EA 1 -$      

41 D-751-5.4 CONSTRUCT NEW INLET FRAME, GRATE AND APRON EA 8 -$      

42 L-100-5.1

REMOVE AND SALVAGE EXISTING TAXIWAY EDGE LIGHT AND ISOLATION TRANSFORMER, DEMO 

BASE CAN EA 9 -$      

43 L-100-5.2 EXCAVATE AND REMOVE EXISTING HANDHOLE EA 3 -$      

44 L-100-5.3 EXCAVATE AND REMOVE EXISTING CONDUIT AND CONDUCTOR LF 1,125       -$      

45 L-100-5.4 EXCAVATE AND REMOVE EXISTING CONDUCTOR. CONDUIT TO REMAIN LF 127          -$      

46 L-100-5.5 TEMPORARY AIRFIELD LIGHTING CIRCUIT JUMPERS LS 1 -$      

47 L-100-5.6 NEW 25A 2-POLE 480V CIRCUIT BREAKER INSTALLED (APRON LIGHTING CIRCUITS) EA 4 -$      

48 L-100-5.7

NEW 100' STEEL POLE WITH 12, 1200 WATT LED FIXTURES AND LED OBSTRUCTION LIGHT ON 

NEW CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH GROUNDING COMPLETE EA 2 -$      

49 L-100-5.8

APRON LIGHTING CONTROL/CONTACTOR CABINET,WITH PHOTOCELL, NEMA 3R, OUTDOOR 

RATED COMPLETE EA 1 -$      

50 L-108-5.1 L-824, TYPE C, 2/C #8 AWG, 5KV CABLE, #6 BARE COPPER GROUND LF 855          -$      

51 L-108-5.2 2-#4, #4 NEUTRAL, #4 GROUND THWN, 600V CABLE (APRON LIGHTING) LF 3,050       -$      

52 L-110-5.1 SINGLE-WAY, (1) - 2" CONDUIT, SLURRY ENCASED RETROFIT IN EXISTING ASPHALT LF 85 -$      

53 L-110-5.2 SINGLE-WAY (1) - 2" CONDUIT, CONCRETE ENCASED LF 675          -$      

54 L-110-5.3 MULTIPLE-WAY, (2) - 2" CONDUIT, CONCRETE ENCASED LF 460          -$      

55 L-110-5.4 MULTIPLE-WAY, (4) - 2" CONDUIT, CONCRETE ENCASED LF 423          -$      

56 L-110-5.5 MULTIPLE-WAY (8) - 2" CONDUIT, SLURRY ENCASED, RETROFIT IN EXISTING ASPHALT LF 85 -$      

57 L-110-5.6 MULTIPLE-WAY (9) - 2" CONDUIT, CONCRETE ENCASED, RETROFIT IN EXISTING CONCRETE LF 60 -$      

58 L-110-5.7 MULTIPLE-WAY, (8) - 2" CONDUIT, CONCRETE ENCASED LF 975          -$      
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PROJECT NO. AV06000026 FAA

AMOUNT LINE NO. ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT
 APPROX. 

QUANTITY 
UNIT PRICE

59 L-110-5.8 MULTIPLE-WAY, (12) - 2" CONDUIT, CONCRETE ENCASED LF 10 -$      

60 L-110-5.9

MULTIPLE-WAY, (3) - 4" CONDUIT (COMMUNICATIONS), CONCRETE ENCASED, RETROFIT IN 

EXISTING CONCRETE LF 60 -$      

61 L-115-5.1 NEW HANDHOLE, PREFABRICATED CONCRETE 4' X 4' X 4' WITH AIRCRAFT RATED LID EA 4 -$      

62 L-115-5.2 NEW L-867D 16" DIAMETER JUNCTION CAN WITH BLANK COVER EA 1 -$      

63 L-115-5.3 NEW SIZE 5 TRAFFIC RATED PULLBOX EA 2 -$      

64 L-125-5.1

NEW ELEVATED L-861T(L) LED TAXIWAY EDGE LIGHT AND ISOLATION TRANSFORMER ON NEW L-

868 BASE CAN WITH CONVERSION RING EA 9 $

BASE BID TOTAL (ITEMS 1 - 64)

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________& _____/100 DOLLARS

WRITTEN WORDS
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